
 

City of Excelsior 
Hennepin County, Minnesota 

 
MINUTES 

EXCELSIOR CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

 
Monday, January 21, 2014 

 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

 
Mayor Gaylord called the meeting to order at 6:16 p.m.   

 
Present: Councilmembers Caron (arrived at 6:21 p.m.), Fulkerson, Miller 

(arrived at 6:16 p.m.), and Mayor Gaylord 
 
Absent: Councilmember Beattie 

 
Also Present:   City Manager Luger, Finance Director Tumberg, City Engineer 

Dawley, Public Works Superintendent Wisdorf and City Clerk 
Murphy 

 

2. Agenda Approval 
 

Miller moved, Fulkerson seconded, to amend the agenda and add Item 5 “Change in the 
Meeting Process” to the agenda.  Motion carried 3/0.   
  

3. Food and Beverage Tax 
 

Luger presented information on implementing a food and beverage tax, including a 
list of possible projects that could be funded by the tax.  Luger also presented a 
chart of some cities with special taxes and the amounts they are generating in taxes.  

A preliminary estimate for Excelsior at a rate of half a percent would amount to 
approximately $100,000 annually.  A rate of one percent would amount to 

approximately $200,000 annually.  Luger stated that most cities have a tax of half a 
percent to one percent.  Fulkerson questioned if there is a state law for the 
percentage that can be used and if there is a risk of being denied at one percent.   

Tumberg and Luger stated that it just needs to get passed.  Mayor Gaylord said that 
Giants Ridge is the closest in size to Excelsior and they collect $58,000 annually for 

food and beverage tax.  Luger said Giants Ridge also has an entertainment tax. 
 
Fulkerson asked about lodging tax.  Luger said lodging tax is local and that the City 

just needs to pass a resolution for it, but this is separate from the food and beverage 
tax.  Tumberg said Rochester has a seven percent lodging tax. 

 
Miller suggested the half percent rate because he feels there will be a lot of pushback 
from local merchants.  Luger said this will still generate a lot of money.  Mayor 

Gaylord said that most people won’t notice the increase.  Caron feels merchant 
owners will object, simply because it’s a tax, but that the City should do it regardless 

of complaints.  Caron thinks a half percent is reasonable and would even suggest a 
higher rate. 

 
Luger said the first step is to convince the Senator and Representative.  Caron 
suggested starting at a higher rate. 



Minutes 
City Council Work Session 

January 21, 2014 
Page 2 
 
3. Food and Beverage Tax - Continued 

 

Luger said the City can ask for a one percent food and beverage tax, as long as the 
City indicates what project the tax is going to cover.  She also said that as soon as 

the money is raised for the project, the tax goes away.  Luger said the project must 
have regional significance. 
 

Luger stated that the Council should make a list of discussion points and appoint a 
representative or two to meet with the Senator and Representative. 

 
Tumberg said some projects on the Council’s list may be able to be funded form the 
TIF partnership with the hotel.  Tumberg also said if the Council brings a lot of 

information and what it means to Excelsior’s budget, that Senator Osmeck may be 
more inclined to agree. 

 
Mayor Gaylord questioned how much Giants Ridge requested and suggested that 

Excelsior request a higher amount.  Miller asked if more than one project can be 
justified.  Luger said it can be done but would be harder to do and that it may be 
easier to stay with one item (i.e., park improvements).  Luger also said it would be 

hard to make City Hall a regional asset.  The Council agreed that all of the park 
items should be included.  Miller said the City could put together a package with the 

park plan, comp plan, and build a good case.  Caron indicated that there may be 
people in the community who could help with the marketing part of putting the plan 
together.  The Council agreed that a good plan needs to be put together, with 

support from the community, before meeting with the Legislators.  Luger stated that 
if the community understands that we are improving The Commons with these funds, 

that they may be more receptive to the idea of the tax. 
 
Caron suggested having an initial dialogue with Bill Damberg and Laura Hotvet 

during the meeting with the Chamber of Commerce on January 23rd. 
 

Mayor Gaylord suggested that this item be put on the next Work Session agenda to 
discuss the framework for meeting with the Legislators and appoint representatives 
to meet with them.  Miller suggested hiring someone to market and produce a 

document to raise the funds, if there are no volunteers from the community.  Luger 
said it may be beneficial to hire a consultant to monitor that the Legislators are 

working on the item and moving the bill along. 
 

4. City Hall Options 

 
Luger said three options were discussed in March 2013, in terms of budgeting for 

City Hall.  She said the Council had selected Option 2, so $300,000 was set aside in 
the Long Term Financial Plan for the planning and remodeling of City Hall.  She said 
staff is looking for direction on: 

 
1. Moving all of City Hall in to the library space.  Luger is not sure if this option 

will work.  Luger said if the Council wants to explore it, the City should hire an 
architect. 

 

 



Minutes 
City Council Work Session 

January 21, 2014 
Page 3 
 
4. City Hall Options - Continued 

 

2. Revamping the library space.  Luger said this option didn’t specify if City Hall 

would move into the space, also. 
 

Miller questioned if the library space can serve the City’s needs and what portion of 

the building can be leased out to produce revenue.  He also suggested revisiting the 
idea of 810 Excelsior Boulevard and asked if it would be enough space for the City’s 

offices.  Luger said there is enough space for the offices but not for the Chambers.  
Miller said the current City Hall may be better served leased out for retail, since the 
City already has a tenant who would like to rent the entire building. 

 
Fulkerson noted that residents like to walk to the current City Hall location.  Caron 

said the City needs to have an architect look at the space for the current building 
and questioned the City’s space needs, since only a few people attend the Council 
meetings.  Mayor Gaylord doesn’t think the library space is very large.  Fulkerson 

asked if the new library will have a meeting room but Luger said she didn’t think it 
was very large. 

 
Luger stated that the City can contact some architecture firms.  Fulkerson suggested 
contacting Nick Ruehl.  Luger said he is interested and is familiar with the space.  

Luger also said the City will send out a Request for Proposals (RFP). 
 

Miller said the current tenant would like to lease or buy and said the City should try 
to use something we already have and find someone who can create a unique space.  
Caron suggested finding someone who is used to dealing with unusual spaces.  Luger 

said the City owns a large amount of area and the RFP could be put out for the entire 
area.  Miller said the first thing to do is determine the space needs and agreed with 

Caron that we need to come up with some creative ideas for the current space or 
look at the entire space.  Luger said she will draft an RFP for an architect for the next 
meeting. 

 
5. Change in the Meeting Process 
 

Mayor Gaylord stated that at the next Work Session he would like to discuss the 
process on how discussions occur at the City Council meetings.  Mayor Gaylord 
mentioned the Excelsior Brewery discussion and that the Applicant exerted himself 

during Council discussions.  Mayor Gaylord put together some ideas that he 
discussed with Attorney Staunton and Luger on how to manage meetings and public 

interactions.  Fulkerson said the protocol was not followed at the last meeting.  
Mayor Gaylord said there was pressure to open the public hearing a second time and 
he is not inclined to do that again. 

 
6. Adjournment 
 

 Fulkerson moved, Caron seconded, to adjourn at 6:58 p.m.  Motion carried 4/0. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

Shirley Murphy 
City Clerk 


